
NOTICE OF MEETING

Meeting HFRA Stakeholder Committee

Date and Time Tuesday, 16th July, 2019 at 2.00 pm

Place Room X - HFRS HQ, Eastleigh

Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk

John Coughlan CBE
Chief Executive
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ

FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION
This meeting may be recorded and broadcast live on the County Council’s website.  
The meeting may also be recorded and broadcast by the press and members of the 
public – please see the Filming Protocol available on the County Council’s website.

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

To receive any apologies for absence.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

To enable Members to disclose to the meeting any disclosable pecuniary 
interest they may have in any matter on the agenda for the meeting 
where that interest is not already entered in the Authority’s register of 
interests, and any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests in any such 
matter that Members may wish to disclose.

3. DEPUTATIONS  

Pursuant to Standing Order 19, to receive any deputations to this 
meeting.

4. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make.

5. 3SFIRE STAKEHOLDER COMMITTEE TERMS OF REFERENCE  
(Pages 3 - 46)

To consider a report from the Clerk, which provides more detailed draft 
terms of reference for the 3SFire Ltd Stakeholder Committee.

Public Document Pack



6. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  

To resolve that the public be excluded from the meeting during the 
following items of business, as it is likely, in view of the nature of the 
business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if 
members of the public were present during these items there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information within Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, and further that in all 
the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information, for 
the reasons set out in the reports.

7. STAKEHOLDER COMMITTEE GOVERNANCE PRESENTATION  

To receive a presentation from the Assistant Chief Fire Officer regarding 
Stakeholder Committee Governance.

ABOUT THIS AGENDA:
On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages.

ABOUT THIS MEETING:
The press and public are welcome to attend the public sessions of the 
meeting. If you have any particular requirements, for example if you require 
wheelchair access, please contact members.services@hants.gov.uk for 
assistance.

County Councillors attending as appointed members of this Committee or by 
virtue of Standing Order 18.5; or with the concurrence of the Chairman in 
connection with their duties as members of the Council or as a local County 
Councillor qualify for travelling expenses.

mailto:members.services@hants.gov.uk


Purpose:     Approval 

Date:  16 July 2019

Title:  3SFire Stakeholder Committee Terms of Reference

Report of Committee Clerk

SUMMARY

1. This report provides more detailed draft terms of reference for the 3SFire 
Ltd Stakeholder Committee.  The draft terms of reference are at Appendix 
1 and seek to clarify the remit and responsibility of the Stakeholder 
Committee. 

2. The report seeks approval from the Committee to the draft terms of 
reference and for them to be recommended to the Authority for adoption 
and incorporation into the Constitution. 

BACKGROUND

3. At its meeting in June 2019, the Authority received a report from the Chief 
Fire Officer in respect of the governance arrangements for 3SFire Ltd (the 
Authority’s wholly owned trading company). 

4. At the June 2019 meeting, the Authority agreed to modify the governance 
structures and resolved to create and appoint members to a “stakeholder 
committee” to discharge the Authority’s functions as shareholder of 3SFire 
Ltd.  The Authority also agreed that it would not appoint elected members 
to the Board of 3SFire Ltd and instead made interim appointments of 
officers.  

5. High level terms of reference for the Stakeholder Committee were agreed 
by the Authority with a view to more detailed terms of reference being 
produced, approved by the Stakeholder Committee and recommended to 
the Authority for adoption and inclusion in the Constitution.  

6. This report provides draft terms of reference for the Stakeholder Committee 
which have been drafted on behalf of the Clerk and Monitoring Officer by 
the Authority’s legal adviser.   

Page 3

Agenda Item 5



7. The draft terms of reference have been carefully drafted so as to be 
consistent with 3SFire Ltd’s Articles of Association and to ensure that the 
stakeholder committee and there the Authority will be compliant with 
statutory company law requirements.  

8. 3SFire Ltd’s Articles of Association are attached at Appendix 2 and the draft 
terms of reference should be read in conjunction with them. 

9. The draft terms of reference include a section that reserves some 
shareholder functions to the full Authority.  These are the most significant 
decisions, such as issuing new shares, entering insolvency arrangements 
or winding the company up.  Otherwise, all other shareholder functions are 
devolved to the Stakeholder Committee.

SUPPORTING OUR SERVICE PLAN AND PRIORITIES

10. Ensuring that 3SFire Ltd’s governance is robust and that its trading activities 
are both lawful and are properly scrutinised by members contributes to 
HFRS’s capacity to deliver the Service.  Therefore, the contents of this 
report are consistent with and support the Service Plan, Safer, Stronger 
priorities and the Fire and Rescue National Framework document. 

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

11. The stakeholder committee will be supported by officers as appropriate.  
Otherwise there are no financial/resource implications associated with the 
proposals in this report as it relates to a minor change of governance only. 

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

12. There are no impacts to the environment or sustainability arising from the 
proposals in this report. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

13. The Legal Services team have been fully involved in drafting the terms of 
reference for the Committee, and have sought to ensure that the draft terms 
of reference ensure compliance with local government legal requirements, 
as well as company law requirements.   

Page 4



EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT

14. The proposals in this report are considered compatible with the provisions 
of equality and human rights legislation.  

OPTIONS

15. The Committee has the following options: 

(a) Approve the draft terms of reference for the Stakeholder Committee 
and recommend them to the full Authority for adoption and 
incorporation into the Constitution; or 

(b) Continue with the existing high level terms of reference which have 
previously been approved. 

RISK ANALYSIS

16. Approving the draft terms of reference provides clarity about the role and 
remit of the Stakeholder Committee.  It also ensures that there is a strong 
and robust audit trail in respect of the Authority’s exercise of the shareholder 
function and will assist in ensuring legal compliance. 

17. Not approving the draft terms of reference will mean that the Stakeholder 
Committee is reliant on very high level terms of reference, which simply 
provide for the Committee to exercise the shareholder functions of the 
Authority.  This may leave Authority and 3SFire Ltd in a weaker position in 
respect of governance and decision making. 

EVALUATION AND CONCLUSION

18. For the reasons set out above, it is recommended that the Committee 
approve the draft terms of reference and recommend them for adoption by 
the full Authority.  This will assist in ensuring that appropriate governance 
arrangements are in place in respect of 3SFire Ltd. 

Page 5



RECOMMENDATION

19. That the Committee approve the draft terms of reference for the 3SFire 
Ltd Stakeholder Committee at Appendix 1 and recommend to the full 
Authority that these be adopted and included with the Authority’s 
Constitution.   

APPENDICES ATTACHED

20. Appendix 1 – Draft Terms of Reference
21. Appendix 2 – 3SFire Ltd’s Articles of Association 

Contact: Paul Hodgson 
For the Clerk and Monitoring Officer
01962 832428

Page 6



3SFire Ltd – Stakeholder Committee Terms of Reference

Introduction

Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority (“the Authority”) is the sole shareholder of 3SFire Ltd 
(“the Company”).  The Company is a local authority trading company limited by shares.  
HFRA has delegated all shareholder functions, except insofar as these are expressly 
reserved, to a committee of the Authority known as the “3SFire Ltd Stakeholder Committee” 
(“the Committee”). 

The Authority accepts and understands that the directors of the Company from time to time 
(“the Directors”) are responsible for the management of the Company’s business, subject to 
the powers that are reserved to the Company’s shareholder by statute and/or the Company’s 
Articles of Association (“the Articles”), further details of which appear below.

Composition

The Committee will be made up of 5 members of HFRA, appointed according to the overall 
proportionality of HFRA from time to time.  

The Committee members (including the Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Committee) will 
be appointed by HFRA at its Annual General Meeting and/or at other times of the year as 
required.  

Role of the Committee

The day to day direction and management of the Company will solely be a matter for the 
Directors (and for the executive directors to the extent of their delegated authority to bind the 
Company).  

The Committee shall, without in any way issuing directions or instructions to the Directors in 
respect of the day to day business of the Company, undertake the shareholders’ functions.  
This includes those functions that: (a) are expressly delegated to shareholders; (b) are to be 
exercised by the shareholders by operation of law; and/or (c) are expressly reserved in the 
Articles to HFRA, but excludes the shareholder functions reserved to the Authority as set out 
later in these Terms of Reference.

Specifically, and without limitation, the Committee’s functions shall include: 

1. Appointing and removing Directors; 
2. Reviewing and amending the Articles; 
3. Exercising the “Shareholders’ reserve power pursuant to Article 4(1), and under 

which “the shareholders may, by special resolution, direct the directors to take, or 
refrain from taking, specified action”; 

4. Receiving reports from the Directors in relation to the following: 
a. proposed resolutions, approvals and actions;
b. the Company’s accounts; 
c. the Company’s business plan; and
d. such other matters as the Committee determines from time to time; 

5. Discharging the shareholders’ voting rights and responsibilities at General Meetings 
of the Company and/or as required by law.  (NB As a corporate member, HFRA has 
authorised the Chairman and/or Vice Chairman of the Committee to act as HFRA’s 
authorised representative at General Meetings of the Company pursuant to Article 39 

Page 7



of the Company’s Articles and section 323 Companies Act 2006. Further, HFRA also 
expressly authorises the Chairman and/or Vice Chairman of the Committee to sign 
any resolution or other document necessary to implement any decision of the 
Committee.  Any such resolution or document that is duly signed by the Chairman or 
Vice Chairman shall be deemed to be signed by HFRA as shareholder). 

6. Exercising the Authority’s financial controls over the Company pursuant to Article 67 
of the Company’s Articles, including providing such consents as may be required.   

Functions Reserved to the Authority

If the Directors are considering: 

(a) The Company participating in any scheme of arrangement or any other composition 
or arrangement in respect of the debts or liabilities of the Company; 

(b) The Company passing any resolution or the taking of any other steps to wind the 
Company up or to dissolve the Company; 

(c) making any application for an administration order or taking any steps required for 
the appointment of an administrator out of court;

(d) admitting any person (whether by subscription or transfer) as a member of the 
Company; and/or

(e) increasing or varying the Company’s authorised share capital, creating new shares, 
altering the rights or obligations attaching to any of its shares, or granting any option 
over shares;

then any shareholder decisions or consents that are required shall be made or granted 
by HFRA.  

Meetings

The Committee will meet at least four times per year at the Authority’s offices in Eastleigh.  
The Chairman may convene other meetings of the Committee as required.  

Quorum

The quorum of the Committee shall be in accordance with the Authority’s Constitution.  

Publication of Information  

Notice of the Committee’s meetings, the agenda, papers and minutes will be published on 
the Authority’s website in accordance with the Authority’s Constitution and obligations under 
relevant local government law.   

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 3SFire Stakeholder Committee Terms of Reference
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2


